
United Nations

GENERAL
A S S E M B L Y
FORTY-SECOND SESSION

Oflclol  Rwords’

SPECYAI,  POl,ITYCAI.  COMMTTTEE
13th meetinq

held on
Monday, 1 Novemher 1987

at !O a .m.
New York

_ _ -..-  ._  ..-. - - ____-.._---..-  .-.-___  -__.-  __-__  _ _ _ _ _

FIJWAPY RFCORD OF TIJF  13th MEETTNG

Chai rmanr M r .  AL-KPWAPT  ffJatar\

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM  79: UNITED NATIONS RET,JEF  AND WORKS AGENCY FOR PAIESTINE FFFUGEFS 711
THE NEAR EAST (continued)

(a) REPORT OF THF COMMISSIONER-GENERAL  (continued_)

(h) REPORT OF THE WORKING GROUP ON THE FTNANCING OF THE UNITED NATIONS RELIEF
AND WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN THE NEAR EAST (continued)

(c) REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS CONCILIATION CCMlYSSION FOR ?ALESTINE
(cant  inued)

(d) REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)



A/SPC/42/sR.13
English
Page 2

The meeting wae called to order at LO.30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 791 UNITED NATIONS RELIEF AND WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES TN
THE NEAR EAST (continued) (A/SPC/42/L.6  to L.13, L.15 and L.16)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMISSIONER-GENERAL (continued) (A/42/13 and Add.1)

(b) REPORT OF THE WORKING GROUP ON THE FINANCING OF THE UNITED NATIONS RELIEF AND
WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN THE  NEAR EAST (continued) (A/42/633)

(C)  REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS CONCILIATION COMMISSION FOR PALESTINE (continued)
(A/42/515)

(d) REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/42/309, 445, 446, 480-482, 505
and 507)

1 . Mr. BILAL (Qatar) said that the report of the United Nations Relief and Works
Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East each year reminded Member States of
the urgent need for a just solution of the question of Palestine, which would
enable the Palestinian people finally to exercise its right to self-determination
and the refugees to return to their homea. Over the past  40 years the Palestinians
had shown that nothing could deflect them from those objectives and that they would
never accept integration into other societies and renunciation of their identity.

2. His delegation agreed with the Commissioner-General’s statement  that  a
three-year extenston of the Agency’d  mandate would not turn UNRWA into a permanent
body. I t s  task ,  which had been defined by the General  Assembly at  i ts fourth
session, would end only when the refugee problem was eolved.

3. The international community had pronounced on the question many times,
affirming in numerous resolutions the right of the Palestinian people to
self-determination and to return to its homeland and stressing that the convening
of an international peace conference on the Middle East was the beat way in which
to bring about a sett lement of  the cdnflict. It was because of certain parties’
obstinate refusal to subscribe to that approach that the Palestinian people
continued to suffer and that the Agency had become a quasi-permanent body.

4. His country was pleased to note that  the Agency’s financial si tuat ion had
improved during the past two years. Never the less ,  i t  drew attention to an
important fact: only 5 per cent  of the Palestine refugees received direct aid from
the Agency while the vast majority fended for themselves, thereby givirg  the lie to
the image of them as idlers l i v ing  off international charity.

5. In 1987 while believing that i t  was appropriate  to  repeat ,  in broad terms,  all
the provisions of the resolution adopted the previous year on the item under
consideration, his delegation reaffirmed that the way to solve the refugee problem
was through a just and comprehensive political settlement  in accordance with the
respective United Nations resolutions. The international community must strive

/ . . .



A/sPC/42/SR.13
Engl ish
Page 2

(Mr.  Bilal,  Qatar)

without  respi te  to  at ta in that  object ive and br ing every means of  pressure to bear
on the aggressor.

6. Mr.  SHIHABI (Saudi  Arabia)  recal led that  71 years ago to the day,  a  foreign
Government had, by means of the disastrous Balfour Declaration, promised the
sionist  Orqanization  that the Jews would be given a land taken from the Arab people
in which to establ ish their  own nat ional  State . The Palestine refugee problem wa5
the direct consequence of that promise. The Zionist usurpation of Pa lest ine  had
led,  38  years before,  to the establ ishment of the United Nat ions Rel ief  and works
Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East, which had been intended only as a
temporary body. However, the Zionist  occupat ion persisted and Israel  wa5
continuing, through its crimes against humanity, to  prevent  the Palest in ian people
from returning to its country, The Zionists did not hesitate to use the weapon of
terror to thwart  any international in i t ia t ive  designed to redress some of  Israe l ’s
cr imes in  Arab terr i tor ies. It  war, indeed, impossible to avoid using the word
“terrorism” in the face of  the puni t ive act ions of the Israel i  author i t ies  against
c iv i l ians and defenceless chi ldren,  the i r  demolit&on  of the shelters built  by the
&m-w, their  encouraqement  of forefqners to eett le  in Palest ine,  thereby ousting
the owners from their  ancestral  land,  and their  inci tement  of those foreigners to
part ic ipate in  cr imes canmit ted in  the name of Zionism.  That wan a real  tragedy,
not only for the Palestinian people but aleo  for the United Nations. A people’5
land had been usurped and its resources continued to be plundered, while the Unitei
Nation5 dealt  only with the symptomta  and refused to treat  the disease with the
required determinat ion.

7 . As it had done in each of the past 38 years ,  hie  country  expressed i ts  deep
appreciat ion to the Commiaefoner-General  of the Agency and to his staff  in the
f ie ld. Although the target of attack6  by the Zionist  enti ty,  the Agency provided
access to schooling, training and work centres for a large number of young refugees
who otherwise would have no option other than to join the legitimate resistance
against  Israe l ’s  i l leg i t imate  v io lat ions of  in ternat ional  law. If the Agency had
to terminate i ts  operat ions,  the Israel i  authori t ies would then be confronted by a
new qenecetion of Palestinians who would have no alterrxtive  but to fight against
the Zionists who had usurped their  country and deprived them of their  r ights.
Israel would then understand that none of the conspiracies hatched in the corridor5
of  var ious capi ta ls  would  be ab le  to prevent  the Palest in ian people’s  return to
Palest ine . In that  respect ,  those  countries support ing the Zionists should
acknowledge their own responafbility  for events in Palestine.

8. The international community had fai led to stem the  excesses  of  zionism.  The
number of Palestine refuqees, which had hen  less than 1 million in 1950, was
current ly  in  excess of  2,200,OOO. That wa0  a  go&J indicati-0  of  the scope of the
problem. The United Nations,  in i ts decision to estabish t 2 Agency in  1949,  had
l inked its mandate to the right  of  return and to the payment of coml>enestion  for
those Palestiniana who did not wish to return to their homes. The refugees were
st i l l  wai t ing for  the United Nationr  to fu l f i l  i ts  commitments,  whi le  the Israel i
autliorities  were  s t r iv ing  to  close  all  the doors.

/ ,..



A/SPC/IZ/SR.  13
English
Page 4

(Mr.  Shihabi, Saudi Arabia)

9 . A sign  of encouragement could, however, be 6een  in the Agency’s BUCCCBB,
thanks to the contribution of the international communit.y, in overcoming it0
financial crisis  of recent yearn. Hi8 delegation alao  welcomed the meaaurea  t aken
by the European Economic Community to rIpen  ita  markets to the products of the
occupied Arab territorier  and hoped that the Commireioner-General would provide
detailed reports  on the relevant fncilitation  meaaures taken in Europe, and on the
posit ion of  the Zionist  authorities, whoae  objectivea were all too evident. Hil
country was  aleo  gratified that rrome  rpecialized  nTencies  of the United Nationa  had
co-operated with UNRWA in providing relief to the variour groups euffering from the
cffectc UC ?‘oniet  oppreeaion  and Israeli  aqqresaion  in aouthern Lebanon.

1 0 . r’he international community had thought that i t  had found a solution to t’le
Jewish problem  and to Nazi terror at the expense of the Arab people,  but no one
could feel secure  in  Paleertine  60  long aa the real owners >f the land were deprived
of their r ight to eecurity. The march of history wds  continuing. A nation of
200 million Arabs, eupported by 1,000 million Mualfme  and by every Bane  and
truth-loving person in the world , would never be defeated by the Zionist
conspiracy. Right would triumph and sanity would prevail.

11. Monei3nor  FRANC0 (Observer for the Holy See), reiterated his delegation’s
Jupponor  t h e  Agency’e  a c t i v i t i e s , and paid a tribute to ite  staff who were
csrrying olrt tl~eir  duties in dangerous situat ions at  the r isk of tt.eir  lives. His
delegation urged the international community to respond generously to the
Commissioner-General’s appeal. I t  aleo  suppor ted  UNRWA’s  activities because  i t
shared the Agency’s concerns and aims - namely, aseistance  to Palestine refugees in
the Middle East  - and itrr  annual financial contr ibut ion ,  however  modest ,  was  a
tangible sign of that suppo r t .

1 2 . The Holy See also provided direct assistance  to Palestine refugees through the
Pontifical Mission for Palestine,  established in 1949 for tl,e care of Palestinians
in need, regardless of their  creed. The Pontifical Mission administered its o w n
projects and insti tutions and aleo  co-ordinated the assistance provided to the
Palestine refugees by other Catholic agencies in Europe and North America. It  also
collaborated with UNRWA and other voluntary agencies. In 1986, the Pontifical
Mission had distributed $6 million for programmes and projects, the most important
of which had given aecietance  to 7,856 children in Amman, Beirut and Jerusalem. It
had also supported inst i tut ions for the disabled,  universitLes,  clinics,  refugee
camps and public iibrariee.

1 3 . His delegation was deeply concerned at the si tuation in the Middle East ,
specifically the agony of Lebanon. It had expressed its solicitude for the
Palestine refugeee, victims of a tragic eituation  which had persisted far too
long. I t  unequi.xally  condemned recourse  to violence a s  a  means  of secur ing
rights,  but rt=al,zed  that such a n  aberrat ion could be tempting in the face of
persir;ting  situat ions of in just ice . For that Teation, i t  wa8  renewing it8  call for
a solution that would strike at  the toots of the problem of the Palestinian people,
namely, the establishment of their own homeland. In that regard,
Pope John Paul II, on the occasion of his recent meet ing with Jewish  leaders in

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SP.l3
English
Page 5

(Monsignor Franc01

Miami, had said that the Jewish people had a right to a homeland, according to
international law, but that the same right also applied to the Palestinian people,
and that all concerned - Muslims, Jews and Christians - must honestly reflect On
the past and forge solutions which would lead to a just , complete and 1;sting  peace
in that area. Until that goal had been achieved , the Palestine refugees would need
the help of the international community. The Pontifical Mission would remain in
the Middle East for as long as there were refugees to be helped. U?JWRA  must also
continue its relief and assistance activities. Both organisations were and would
be in the forefront of international solidarity - meeting the multiple needs of the
refugees and, in future, assisting the development of the Palestinian people.

14. Mr. TEWAHI (India) commended the Commissioner-General-on his lucid report
which described the operational difficulties that the Agency was encountering in
carrying out its humanitarian work. It must be realised, however, that the problem
was basically political and not merely humanitarian, The only way to put an end to
the sufferings of the Palestinian people was to find a just and comprehensive
solution to the Middle East conflict, and that would be possible only by
implementing the various General Assembly resolutions, and in particular,
resolution 194 (III) of 11 December 1948. Lasting peace could be guaranteed only
by Israel's withdrawal from all the territories occupied since 1967, including
Jerusalem, and recognition of the inalienable rights of the Palestinian people,
including its right to establish an independent, sovereign State in Palestine.

15. Mrs. Indira Gandhi, in her address to the Seventh Conference of Heads of State
or Government of Non-Aligned Countries, had recalled the unanimous support of those
countries for the Palestinian people and had expressed indignation over Israel's
unabashed transgressions of international law. For several decades, the
Palestinian people's tenacious struggle for freedom had aroused the consciousness
of the entire world. Future generations of Palestinians, sustained by the example
Of the thousands of martyrs who had given their lives for that cause, would fight
until their aim had been fulfilled.

16. India was gratified to note the Agency's improved financial situation in 1986
and its encouraging projections for 1987. While the situation'was much better than
it had been in 1985, the Commissioner-General must continue hi's efforts to broaden
the Agency’s base of financial support. The informal meeting of donors, held in
May 1986, had been effective , and more such meetings should be planned. In
particular funds must be raised for the construction budget in order to build much
needed schools and clinics.

17. India, which had contributed regularly to UNHNA, had decided to increase its
contribution by 12 per cent in 1988-1989. It had further granted a number of
scholarships and training positions to Palestinians , and currently there were more
than 2,000 Palestinian students in his country, Furthermore, no restrictions had
been placed on the number of Palestinian students who could seek admission.

18. His.delegation  paid a tribute to the Agency's staff and was saddened by the
death of seven staff members during the past year. It was to be hoped that

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SR.13
English
Page 6

(Mr. Tewaei, India)

LebanonOl)  trag4dy  would not compal UNRWA to aurtail  part of thr vital arrvicee  it
provided, becaure  that might exacrrbata  th4 politiaal  rituation  in thr  ragion,
Thanka to the Ag~mcy’r l tabiliaing influrno4  in thr Middl4 East,  maint4nance  of
thoar  programmoa wan l a44ntial for humanitarian and political rra4on4.  The
international oommunity had a moral obligation to arrirt  UNRWA in every way
poaaibls.

19. I t  was unfortunate  that  rome  W44torn Poworr whiah proalaimrd  their ruppo~r  for
the cause  of human rightr in other parta  of thr world had boaomt unrbaahed
collaborator4 in the rupprranion  of the  Palrrtinian  pooplo’r  right@. Cenerat i.Ons
of disinherited Palertinianr  embcdird  humanity’r  deairr  to fight for 4urvival  and
baeic  human rightr. Freedom and liberty,  whether  in Palmtim  or South Africa,
dererved  the unrtinting ruppor t  of  the  intmrnational  aommunity, which muet  expose
the crimes  of there  who margueraded a8 ohampionr of freedom and demccracy.

20. Mr. AL-HADDAWI (Iraq) raid that the Palortinr  rofugrn  problrm WaI  basically
political, and that unlera  a radical politioal  solution  was  found, it would remain
the principal mourcu  of l trifo in th4 Middl4 East  and would help to perpetuate a
ri tuation which constituted  a threat to  p4ac4. C4rtainlqp  it warn  l raential to aid
the refugeea  and provide rervicer  to tham, but what wa8  mort important  wan the fate
of the Pal.estinian  nation. The Palrrtinianr,  irr4npoativ4  of  their  country of
refuge,  refused to allow their identity to bo rrared and th4ir  rxirtonce  and
homeland to be forgotton. For that rorron, th4 Lntrrnational community - and more
specifically the Unit4d  Nation8 , which wa8 rerponriblm  for their  plight - muet
consider  the political and humanitarian aap4ata  of th4 qurrtion  in  an  ob jec t ive  and
equitable manner, without yielding to prorruro. The only solution doaired by the
Palestinian people and .advocated  in thr  Grnoral  A444mbly  rorolutiona  - waa the
return to their  ancertral  land and the eatablirhm4nt  of their  own independent
State, a solution which would guarantee  peace , l ocurity and etability  in the region.

21. The claim that tha Palaatiniana  had lrft  thair  oountry  at  thr  inrtnnce of the
Arab Government6 was faire  and mirled intrrnational  opinion. Tha refugee  problem
wns  a result  of terrori4m  practiaad  by Zionirt  grougr  rush 41  tha Haganah  and the
Irgun aqainnt  tha  Palartiniana  with thr aim of driving thrm out, Emboldaned by
their experience in resisting the  Britirh  authoritier , the Zioniata  had continued
to resort to terrorism, convinced aa thay  wara  of itr  l ffactiveneea.

22. Following the adoption of Ganecal  A4mrmbly  raaolution  181  (II) in 1947, which
provided for the part i t ion of Palaatina  into an Arab Stcrtr  and a  Jewirh  State, the
‘Lioninte  had hatched a plan to be caeriad  out in arvrra? rtager. Tha  f i r s t
consisted of perpetrating maeeacrae wh ich  had obligrd  thr Palartinians  to take flee
e n  mass4 t o  seek  r e f u g e  i n  tha  neighbouring  A r a b  countriaa. Tha  second stage in
the Zioniut  tcrroriat  policy had bean tha aatablirhmrnt  of tha Law of Return, w h i c h
outhorized  only Jew4  to live in Palertinr , and rxcluded tha  Palr4tiniane  who were
the legit imate inhabitante. To anliura  swift application of that law, tha Zionieto
had resorted to piassure  and acts  of t4rrori4m.  Suah had bean thr caee in Iraq,
where  the  Jewe  who had been living thara aomfortably rincr  befora  the Christ ian cm
had bean compelled to emigrate to Paleatina. Tho Jawa  had thur rapidly taken the

/ . . .



A/SPC/I  2/SR.  1 J
Englinh
Page 7

(Mr. Al-Haddawi, Iraq)

place of the Paleatine refugee8  and riesed  all their property by virtue of another
law relative  to the property of abeent ownere , which authorized them to do 80. It
was  eary for Zion’&  leaderr  now to ray thrt the appropriation of thoae propertiee
had been legal. That had been the third operation in the infamour  Zionirt  plan,
which proclaimed that Palertine wae  a land without people for a people without
land. The injurtice  of that plan had been denounced by Count Bernadette  in hi8
report to the Secretary-General of the United Nationr. Mnhatmr Gandhi, in hie  book
on non-violence, had written that Palertine  belonged to the Arabe juet  ae England
belonged to  the Englieh  or Fiance  to the French, and that the rituation  in
Palertine wan contrary to all ethics. Such wae  not the opinion of Golda Mcir,  who
had claimed, 30 years later, with ringular  arrogance, that the Palertinian people
did not exirt  and that conrequently  it  could not be ra id  that the  Jews had usurped
their homeland.

23. The Zionist  plan clearly explained the policy of constant aggrereion  practieed
againrt  the Palertinian people wherever they were, with the aim of annihilating
them. Mamacrea, aerial bornbinge or military raidr  on the refugee camp6  were the
meanr ured to carry out the l o-called “iron  fiat”  policy.

24. In recent yearl,  Zionist  leedecr  had increrred their threat8  and acte of
int imidation to demoralize  the  Palertinianr  and deprive them of al l  hope.  The
Zionirte,  who officially called for l ecuro and  recognized bordere,  were in fact the
lart  to want  them, becaure  they feared that l uch bordere would rtand in the way of
their expenrion and the realization of a Greater Israel.  Morhe Dayan  had declared,
in that  regard,  that  the Bibl ical  land.  belonged to the Bibl ical  people,  and when
that principle was applied, the frontier. became l lartic.

25. The Zioniata  had decided, am  Ariel  Bharon had Qeclared,  to l trike at the
Palertiniane wherever they might be, but they were deceiving themeelvee if they
thought that terroriem and represrion  would rtamp out the Paleatinian people,
because  they had held f irm for  40 years  and would continue to rarirt  unti l  they
worn  able to return to their homeland and l etablieh their own independent State.

26. Hia  delegation recognized that the activities  OL  the United Natione  Relief and
Worke  Agency for Palertine  Refugeer  in the Near Eart (UNRWA)  were commendable and
ccndemned  the arasseination  and kidnapping of UNRWA  rtaff. Iraq called on the
parties concerned to put an end to much  ireeaponaible  practicea and to free those
who had been kidnapped. Poritive etepa rhould be taken to enable UNRWA to fulfil
itr mandate more effectively. In part icular ,  the  zioniat  entity muet  accept  the
reaolutione  of the Special Political Committee concerning Palestinian refugees
living on the Weat  Sank and in the Gem Strip, and all reeolutions  adopted by the
Committee under agenda item 79 should be implemented. The Israeli forces must also
withdraw from southern Lebanon and all partiea  concerned muet  cease their act8 of
aggreeeion  against  the refugees and recognize  their r ight to l ive  with dignity lik;
a l l  other pcoplea.

27. Mr. DERANI  (Malayria), recalling that hir  country had consistently supported
UNRWA, welcomed the unanimnur decision  taken by the General Aeeembly at the

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SR.13
Engl ish
Page 8

(Mr .  Derani,  Malaysia)

previourr  lrersion  to extend the Agency’s  mandate. That decision  augured well for
the future of the Paleatinian refugee8 who had bern l victap from their homeland.

2 8 . The Malayrian  Qovecnment had weloomed  with ratiafaction  the report of the
Commierionec-General  and oommended him for having been able to overcome the
financial cciair and maintain a  credit balanae  in the 1986 budget for UNRwA*8
programme of activitier. The projection8 f o r  1987, in that regard,  were oxtcemely
encouraging. Malayria noted that the Agency’8  improved financial position  was
attributable to better management. I t  alro  walcomod  the rolling programme in
implementing the UNRWA medium-term plan. Much remained to be done, however,
particularly in the area o f  conrtcuction  o f  rchoolr and clinicr.

29. The plight of refugee8 in Lebanon and the Clara  Strip w a n  o f  particular
concern. UNRWA emergency operation8 had been hampered by the l tcong tenriona
prevailing in there  acear . There  pcoblemr,  coupled with the  difficulty of
maintaining 8 dirtinction  between cefugeer , had greatly l rcalatrd the tort  of
emergency operation8 in Lebanon ,  and effort8 by UNRWA pecronnel  to facilitate
accerr to cefugoe camp8 had not alwayr  born auccerrful. Hi8 delegation, however,
wished to expcear  itb  appreciation for  the arrirtance  provided to UNRWA by other

United Nation8 agrnaier,  8uch an the United Nation8 Childcen’r  Fund (UNICEF) and
the World Food Programme (WFP).

3 0 . A8 one o f  the aponrocr  of  cerolution 41/69  E ,  poct8ining  to Palertine refugees
in the Gaza Strip, hi8 delegation considered the attitude  of  the I8carli  Government
toward8 the ruffecingr  of  the Palrrtinian  cefugeer ,  including thr demolition of
their hourer  by the occupation authocitirr,  a8 dorpicable.  Malayria oondamned the
conlrtant  hacarrment  of  Palertinian  civilian8 by the 18caoli  authocitier and once
again called upon 18cael to heed wor ld  opinion. F o r  a l l  thorr  cea8on8, M a l a y s i a
would once again cc-rponroc  the draft cerolution on the Pale8tine  refugee8 i: the
Gaza  Strip.

31. Hi8 delegation reiterated it8  auppoct  for  the v a c i o u a  rffoctr  by UNRWA in the
fields of education, health and training. Such human ce8oucce  development
programmer cepce8ented  an investment in the future of  Palertine.  It  wan with that
objective in mind that Malaysian volunteer8 had gone to Palertine cofugee  camp8 in
Lebanon. In the same  rpicit,  the International 18lamic  Univecrity  in Kuala Lumpuc
had welcomed two Qalertinian  student8 during the period 1985-1987  and wa8  prepared
to admit any Palestinian who wirhed to pursue  hi8 education at that university.
Malaysia also supported the creat ion of  the Univecrity of Jecuralem  “Al-Qud8” for
Palestine refugees. It  was  once again sponsoring the draft  ceeolution  on that
subject and renewed it8 call to the Israeli authorities to facilitate tho
eetablishment  of that institution. The work of UNRWA was noble, but could only be
temporary. A permanent rolution  to the problem of the Palestine cefugeee could be
achieved only through a political solution to the problem of Palertine. Such a
solution could only be achieved through the convening of an international peace
conference on the ‘Middle Ec  et ,  with,  as called for by Malayeia’rr  Minister for

Foreign Affairs . The participation of all pactiee  concerned, including the
Palestine Liberation Ocganization, the eole representative of  the Palestinian
people.

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SR.13
Englirh
Page  9

(Mr .  Derani,  Malayeia)

32. Israel  murt b e  m a d e  t o  respect.  t h e  r i g h t  o f  t h e  Palestiniana  to their
home land. Israel  muet  also fully co-operate with UNRWA and not hinder relief
operationa for the refugee8  in Lebanon , the Gaza  Strip and elaewherr. The
Malayaian Government joined all other Governments which condemned all military and
repreaeive  action6 by the Ieraeli  authorities and their  rurrogater  againrt innOmnt
refugee8  and civilians.

3 3 . Mr.  LUMAUIG  (Philippinea) conrnended the Conunireionor-General of IJNRWA  and hia
etaff for their courage and dedication to the w o r k  of an inrtitution  that had done
80  much to build for the future of the Palestine  refugeor. Paieat  inianr  were
living in the occupied territories and in areas  w h e r e  there seemed to be no end to
the war. They were weary of bombings, security  checka, arbitrary arrertr  and the
closing of rchoole  and public pl.acee. For them, jurt plain surviving wan  a
struggle, and tr ibute must be paid to their courage and their indomitable spirit .

34. A free and independent Palestine would need an educated population and
epeciali~ta  i n  a l l  areaa. UNRWA schools, hoapitala  and profe8eional  training
centre8  were laying the foundations for the future of the Palestinian people. Hi8
delegation was pleared  that UNRWA was going beyond emergency relief to undertake
tsrkr  in ouch  field6  as education, medical services, advanced training, public
health care and welfare so as to meet the need8 of a growing population. It was a
matter of retiefaction  to his delegation that 350,000 Palestine refugee children
attended UNRWA rchoolr and had performed well in exam8  held by the local
authorities. I t  had aleo  taken note of UNRWA’e  succesrful primary health care
programner  for children, pregnant women and nursing mothera.

35. Hie delegation was  heartened by the improvement in UNRWA’e  f inancia l
situation, the Agency having shown  a small excess of income over expenditures in
the  pas t  year . That  was  attributable to both the generosity o f  donors and meaeuree
taken to inprove  management. But such  contributions fell short of the requirements
of it8  eseential  construct  on projects. Needs  were aleo  expected to increase
steadily aa a result of population growth. I t  was to be hoped that  the special
fund-raising efforts of the Agency could cover those  increasing needs, and hi8
delegation urged Member  State6 to he generous in their contributions,

36. UNRWA’s  difficulties in  de l iver ing auppliee  to  Palestinian  refugees during
fighting around the refugee camps in Lebanon were a matter of deep concern, and his
delegation deplored the death of the seven UNRWA worker6  who had lost their lives
over the past  year in the l ine of duty. I t  was distressed to note thnt others had
been arrested, detained and kidnapped. All that dramatically pointed to the fact
that  the queetion of the Palestine refugees waa inextricably linked to the question
of Palestine. There could be no peace in the Middle East  until the queetion of
Paleetine  wae resolved through the establishment  of a homeland for the
Palestinians. His country reaffirmed ite  suppor t  for the inalienable rights of the
Palestinian people to eelf-determination and for the eetablishment  of an
independent State in Paleetine under the leadertlhip  of the Palestine Liberation
Organisation, Lhe  sole legitimate representative of the Palestinian people. At the
same  t ime,  the right of all States  in the reqion,  including Israel, to live in

/ . *.



A/SPC/~Z/SS.  1 3
Engl ish
Page 10

(ME,  Lumauiq ,  Phi l ippines)

peace within secure boundaries must be upheld. A just ,  c?mprehenaive  and laeting
settlement of the Middle East  conf l ict  muat  be achieved i’  a  major  threat  t0
interntional  peace and securi ty was  to he eliminated. The convening of a n
international peace conference on the Middle East  with the part icipat ion Of all
part ies concerned,  including the PLO, under the auapicea  of the United Nations
would be a most appropriate means of bringing about a peaceful and just solution of
the confl ict.

37. Within its modest means,  his country had continued to  give financial support
to UNRWA as a demonetration  of its firm commitment to the Agency’s noble mission.
His delegation was sponsoring resolutions relating to the effoeta  o f  the Working
Group on the Pinancinq  of UNRWA and aasirtance  to the displaced person6 affected by
the fighting in the region. The Member States concerned must exercise political
wil l  so that  the Palestinian  people could at long last live in freedom. The people
and Government  of the Philippine8 reaffirmed their support for the Palestinian
cause  and looked forward to the day when Palestine would become a full-fledged
Member of the United Nations.

3 8 . Mr.  VIKIS (Cyprus) said that i t  was grati fying that as indicated in the report
of the Commissioner-General of UNRWA (document A/42/13), the Agency’s financial
situation had improved in 1986 and projectiona for 1987 were encouraging. In 1986,
there had been an excess of income over expenditure , and the $200 million budgeted
expenditure for 1987 wa expected to be covered through sufficient income. T h e
Agency’s measures to improve management and the increased flow of information
between UNRWA and donors were thus having beneficial results. However, there were
sti?l  serious problems to be overcome, including the funding of the construction
hudqet. As the Commissioner-General emphaeized , any funds made available for
construction should not be at  the expense of contributions to the general
prcqramme. But thoee  encouraging developments concerning the financial situation
of UNKWA  were marred by the worsening conditions faced by the Agency in carrying
out i ts  operat ions and maintaining i ts 6 .vices in Lebanon and in the occupied
territories, conditions which brought suffering and death to both innocent
civilians and Agency staff members.

39. His delegation appreciated the progremmee  undertaken by UNRWA in the fields o f
educat ion,  health and welfare services, but i t  was profoundly concerned at the fact
that  the condit ions which had led to the creat,ion  o f  UNRWA 38 years earlier still
existed. The number of refugees assisted by the Agency had qreatly increased as a
result  of the political situation in the region, and the refugees’ l i v ing
canditionfi  had worsened. An even more considerable financial commitment to UNRWA
w a s  needed, and efforts must be intensif ied to resolve the political problems that
had plaqued  the reqion  for decades. The posit ion of the international community on
the Middle Earit  problem and the question of Palestine , as expren  ,ed  in numerous
rcsol,utions  of the United Nations and the Non-Aligned Movement, had been clear and
cOnni:itent. The internat  ions1  community must redouble its efforts to find a just
solution to the Middle Rafst  problem that  would ensure the return o f  the Palestine
refugees to their  homeland and the restorat ion of the inalienable rights of the
Palest in ian people to self-determination and to establish a State  o f  their  own.

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SR.13
English
Page  11

40. Mr. MITAU (Kenya) mid  that judging hy the report of UNRWA’a
Comniaaioner-General  contained in document A/42/13,  there was no doubt that the
work of the Agency had been hampered by man-made obataclea,  which could have been
avoided had there been co-operation on the part of the occupying authoritier  and
the various militiaa  fighting in the area8 of UWKWA  operat iona. None the less,
faced with  thoee  difficultlee, which had e v e n  involved loaa of life, Agency rtaff
had continued to provide aervicee to the refugeor.

41. Hia delqation  waa encouraged by the improved financial situation of the
Agency during 1966-1987. That had been part ly the result  of the austerity meaeuren
initiated by the Comiaaioner-General  in 1985 and partly due to inc.,eaaed  voluntary
contributiona from donor countries. I t  wan, however, regrettable that UWKWA  had
become a permanent body, contrary to what had been enviaaged at it8 creation, That
wan  due in part to the unwillingness of  some of  the intereated partiea to
participate in aerioua  and direct peace negotiationa to put an end to  the rufferinq
of  refugeea  in the rngion. To that end, Kenya aupported the convening Of an
international peace conference on the Middle Eant  with the participation of all
intereated partioa,  including the Palertine Liberation Organization,  and cal led
upon all intorertrd  part iea to engage in negotiationa without pro-conditiona. In
order for such progreea to be achieved, Ierael muat  agree to withdraw from the
OcCUpied  Arab territories unconditionally and muat  allow the refugees to return and
live p e a c e f u l l y  in their ancestral  homeland.

42. Mr.  RODRIGUBZ-MEDINA  (Colombia) said  that his Governments,  in order to
delllL-strate  ite rupport for the work of UNRWA on behalf of the Palestin@  refugees,
intended at the appropriate t ime to  make a voluntary contribution, the modalities
and amount of which would be announced later. He hoped that the international
comnunity  would  noon  be  able  to establish the basea  for  a  just  and durable peace in
the region.

43. The CHAIRMAN arid that the Comnittee  hnd completed its general debate on the
agenda item under consideration.

44. _Mr.  RAMIN  (Israel)  , speaking i n  exercire  of the right of reply, reminded the
Committee that, when he had referred to the pereecution of the Jews in Iraq and the
confiscat ion of their assets, he had been m e t  with silence on the part  of  the
representative of Iraq, who had apparently considered that it waa beneath him to
reply. It seemed that five daya  had been neceaaary for the repreaentative of Iraq
to concoct out of whole cloth a reply coneiatent with one of Iraq’0 major export
producta  - in addition to oil - namely lies and invent ion. None  the leas,  the
persecut ions inflicted on the Jewa  in Iraq by the authorities of  the country were
well known. hy  way of example, one might cite the murders and torture inflicted on
many Iraqi Jews in April 1941 following a pro-Nazi coup d’etat  btaged by the
Palestinian Araba  againat  Great  BrlLain  , In 1969, nine Jews had been condemned to
death and hanged in the main square of Baghdad1 after the creat ion of Israel, many
Iraqi Jews had had to flee the country by reason of the pereecution and oppression
to which they had been eubjected  and their assets had been confiscated. He would
like to know if the Iraqi Government was prepared to appoint, at the internaticjrlal
level, a custodian for the assets of which the Iraqi Jaws had been deprived end the
incoms  which they should have ohtained from  them.

/ . . .



A/SPC/42/SR.13
Englixh
Pago 1 2

(Mr ,  Hamin, Ierael)

45. One Of the  Kefugnes  registered with UNRWA  was Abu Nidel, w h o  e n g a g e d  i n
terrorist activities on behalf of the Baath, not the Baath of the boqinninq  of the
movement, whoee vision of a renaissance of the Arab nation had, however paradoxical
it  might seem,  been similar to that of Zionism, but the present days Baath,  divided
into two factiona  which hated each other and tore eacn  other apart .  Was it  not
surprising that Abu Nidal  sholuld for many yeare  pabt  have engaged in terrorist
activities on behalf of the Iraqi Baath  again& the Syrians, then of the Slittan
Baath against Iraq, and WBS currently dividing his loyalties between  Syria and
Libya; moreover he had beun condemned to Jeath by a PLO tribbnal  in the context of
the inter-Arab fratricidal s t rugg le .

46. The representative of Iraq would doubtlesx argue that the Iraqi Jews had been
executed because they had been xpiex and traitorx. But would h e  j u s t i f y  i n  like
fashion the masaacrex  of Kurds in the north of the country and the Iraqi attack
against Kuwait?

4 7 . Mr. AL-HADDAWI (Iraq) , npeaking  i n  exerc ise  o f  t h e  r i g h t  of reply,  said that
he would have preferred not to lower himself by rrylying  to the mendacious
allegations of the repreeentati>e  of the Bionixt  ent i ty;  i t  was h o w e v e r  hir  d u t y  t o
provide certa in  clarificationr. Th  antic@  content of the statement  of Iraq wax
suppor ted  by citat ions from the writing8 of tha groatcrt  Zionirt  xtrategixtx much
ax Herzl,  Weixmann, Stein and Dayanet Sharon, an ~011 am those of other independent
thinkers, in particular,  Mahatma Gandhi. Thr cauxox  of the Middle Eaxt problem
were to be found in the basic policiex  of xionirm. One of tha main characteriaticr
of  that ideology wax individualixm. Itx followerx wore in faat encouraged to
ixolate  themxelvrx from the xocietiex  In which they  lived  arld  to cultivate their
own particular ixm. Zionism wax a political movement baxed on the concept that the
Jewish people wax a ChoKIcn  race, the corollary wax that other people8  w e r e
second-claxe.

48. In order to  inpose those ideax , rioniam  had not he8itat.d  to have recourse to
aggresxion, terrorixm,  racixm  and expanxionixm. The reprexentative of the zionillt
entity had once again spoken of the execution of two or three Iraqi  Jewx without
saying that they had been xpiex and aabotourr  who had pledged allegiance to the
zicnist  State,  thus betraying their own country , Iraq, where their ancextorx had
lived in complete safety xince ancient  t imes.  Such behaviour  war not rare. That
was demonstrated by the frequent xcandalx  rexulting  from expionage activities
carried out on behalf  of Israel by Zionixtx  in countries  which had g e n e r o u s l y
welcomed themr thefts  of  secret documents  and military plans, mixapproprtetion  of
radioactive materials, to cite only a few examplex. There WOR a clear and direct
l i n k  between such acts and the theoriex of  Thecdor Herxl,

49. With the utmost assurance, the Zionist reprexrntative had strained ingenuity
by asking why the Jews who had emigrated from Iraq had not teen indemnified.
BetteL than  lny~llq,  h o w e v e r , he  knew tha t ,  by  leaving the  c o u n t r y  o f  t h e i r
anccstf)rCi,  fol.lowlng ilCt6  oT  terrorist  provocation perpetrat.ed  hy t h n  Israeli
secret sF’I.vice:J  i n  s u p p o r t  o f  t h e  cnnmies  of Iraq and the  Arab nntion.  and by
part.ic*\ir.3l.  i.q  Lrl <!L.l  t:til.  wilr: waged h y  Iszeel  aqainst  t h e  A r a b  count.ric?r;,  tho!:n

/ . . .



~mc/42/s~.  1 3
Englirh
Page 13

(Mr,  Al -Haddawi ,  I raq)

Iraqis  had lost their  r ight to indemnif icat ion. I r a q  h a d ,  moreover,  i n  1976
adopted a law offering them the possibil ity of returning to their country if  they
a.0 wished.

5 0 . Mr. FJAMIN (Israel)  said that the repreeentatim  of Iraq had knowingly
distorted hie comments and given the expected explanation regarding the maBaacre  of
I raqi  Jews.

51. Concerning  Saudi Arabia, he had noted that that country had announced a

contribution of $1.2 million to the Agency for 1988. What did that sum represent
by comparison with the needs of the refugees and with the enormoue  wealth w h i c h
Saudi Arabia obtained from oil? Not even  a drop of water . Saudi Arabia would
perhaps reply that it  had made an enormous contribution to the Palestinian cause.
One might, in that case,  ask whether the purpose of that generosity had been to
encoutaqe the PLO in the terrorist  activit ies which it  was carrying on throuqhout
the world or whether it  wasi  simply a ransom paid for protection.

52. I t  was a lso clear  from the report of the High Conuntscioncr
(A/41/13 and Add. 1) , that Kuwait also had made only a minimal contribution  and that
Iraq and Libya had not contributed at all  to the Agency.

53. Mr.  PARTAS  (Libyan Arab Jamahieiya) , epeakinq in exercise  of the right of
reply, said that the members of the Committee were not deceived by the manoeuvrefi
designed to divert their attention from the item under consideration. All  the
Kepreflentativcs  who had Spoken during  the current meeting had supported the right
of the PaleStine  refuqees to return to their country as well  as the right of the
Palest inian pegle  to self-determination, That proved that the international
community conaidered that the claims of that people were just and was clear
evidence of the isolation of the Zioniet  entity,  which persisted in its policy of
intransigence, carrying its obst.inacy  to the point of refusinq the refl  sees their
right to return to thei.r  homer. Such were the questions which the membt  LS  of tne
Committee were to consijer today , and the manoeuvres of the Zionist representative
could not divert them from that purpose.

54. MK. AL-HADDAWI (Iraq) said that, aCCOKdinq to information carried by the
Israeli  newspaper The Bleck  Pantrlera  during the 19606, the Chief Rabbi of the Iraqi
Jewish  community had recqnized  that, for the past 1,000 years, the Jews of Iraq
had enjoyed the same rights  a6 their  Arab compatriots.  The  terroglst  acts
perpetrated by the Israelis in 1950-1951  had not constrained them to abandon their
country. I t  was  Only  when the Israel i  eocret  s e r v i c e s  had intensi f ied their
campaign of terror,  by creat ing a climate of insecurity,  that they had begun to
emigrate. The same sources  had mentioned outrages perpetrated by Israel aga inst
the United States Information Office in Baghdad for the purpose of provocation.

5 5 . Zionist pressure gKOl@S  had permanent control  over the political  activities of
many countries. Anyone who dared to denounce their practices was automatically
accused of being a Nazi and an anti-Semite. Unfortunately, most of the persons who
were thus la&lled  ult imately gave  in  to the Zionist pre6nureFi,  a l lowing  the i r
political  and material  intereats to come before ethical  consirlerations.

/ . . .



A/c:PC/~Z/SR. 13
English
Psqe 14

(Mr. Al-Haddawi, Iraq)

56. The representative of the Zionist entity probably had to exaggerate and
distort  the facta  in order to gain the approval of his masters  and ehow them that a
humble Jewish emiqr;  from Iraq was as competent aa a white  Jew from Europe and that
the segregation policy applied again&  Oriental Jews was mistaken.

51. Mr .  MANSOUR  (Observer ,  Palestine Liberation Organisation) speaking in exercise
of the right of reply, said  that  he wished to reply to the accusations of lying and
invention made by the representative of the Zionist  enti ty against  the
representative of Iraq and to consider in that connection  the actions and conduct
of the Israeli Government. He asked how Israel could accuse other Governments of
lies when a recent New York Times article stated that agents of the Shin Beth had
comnitted  per jury and  had regularly lied about the way testimony had been obtained
in order to convict  persons suspected of terrorist  activitier.  Since 1972, 3,000
or 4,000 Palestinians had thus been found guilty on the basis of lies and
fabrications.

58. He also referred to an article written by a former member of the Knesset and
published in a German magazine which stated that the Israeli invasion of Lebanon
had had the full support of the current Israeli Pr ime Minister,  who had done
nothing to stop the Sabra and Shatila  maaaacres and had denied that he had received
any information on the matter, when he had been aware of the blood-bath which was
being prepared.

59. With regard to the question of terror ism , everyone knew of the Israel?
Government’s conduct in  the occupied terr i tor ies.  Only recently, an Israeli
newrpaper had reported that a 12-year-old  child had been killed by a bullet i n  a
refugee camp and thdt a 54-year-old  woman living in the Gaza  Strip had been killed
when Israeli soldiers had opened fire on youths who had be31-1  throwing stones at
them. Lastly, i t  should be recalled that the current Prime Minister had, in the
19409, been the head of an organization  described as perhaps the most effective
terrorist  organization  of the century.

6 0 . Mr. AL SABAH (Kuwait), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that
hr!  could not allow the fallacious allegations made by the representative of Israel
to be left unanswered. That representative knew better  than anyone that  the
contribution made by Kuwait and Saudi Arabia to UNBWA  was  but a minute part of
their  support  for the Palestinian people. The two countr  ice had admitted a very
large number of refugees, who were not registered with UNKWA,  and spared no effort
in order to ensure them a decent life until they regained their rights.

6 1 . Mr. GJRCOMELLI (Commissioner-General, United Nations Relief and Works Agency
for Palestine Refugees in the Near  East)  said that , in drewing  up the report  for
next year, he would give the most careful consideration to  the many posi t ive
cements  and suggest ions made by delegations about his report (A/42/13 ati  Add. 1).
Nevertheless, he stressed the complex nature of the problems which UNBWA had to
tackle and the iwoesfhility  of satisfying everyone, however objective one tried to
b e .

/ . . .



~/sPC/42/SH.13
English
Page 1s

(Mr. Giacomelli)

62. Despite the relatively more favourable financial situation of the Agency in
1987  and the efforts made by the staft , many of the problems had still not been
solved. The surplus was of a purely technical nature: it was a question of the
cash  in the General Fund. Everyone recognized, however ,  that,  with regard to the
overall activities, the Agency still faced difficulties, particularly conce rn ing
the financing of construction activities.

63. A number of delegations had commented on what they regarded to be the
inadequacy of the current level of services, Like them, he considered that there
were many areas in which the Agency could improve and expand its serViCe8.
Nevertheless, UNRWA could not do so without additional resources, He was
endeavouring to maintain financial stability and dtaw up plans realistically hy
trying not  to upset the delicate balance achieved between the Agency’s requirements
and the capacity of donors to contribute. Nevertheless, the medium-term plan
provided for expanding health facilities, reducing the number  of school children
per classroom, and making other improvements in the programmes. He very much hoped
that the support demonstrated during the discussion would find concrete expression
at the Pledqing Conference to be held on 23 November and that most donors would be
able to announce the exact amount of their contributions, which would facilitate
programme planning and execution.

64. He expressed gratitude to the host countries for the assistance which they
provided to the refugees and which was often a heavy burden for them. He stresWd
the difficulties which the Agency faced in carrying out its duties in certain aredn
and referred particularly to the increasinqly  difficult conditions in the Gaza
St r ip . He wa6  gratified that Governments had recognized the seriousness of thfz
3ituation  in that area and had expressed a willingness to help the Agency . UNRWA
would continue to do whatever it  could to improve the level and quality of the
health services, education and training offered to the refugee population in the:
Gaza  St r ip , The programme of the Training Centre in Gaza would be expanded the
following year through the addition of three courses financed by special  qront!;
from the European Community and the Italian Government.

65. The Agency would continue to co-operate closely with the Government of Lcnnncln
arxl with other United Nations organisations to bring vital relief assistance TV  the
Palestine refugees in Lebanon. The most urgent task currently was to assist  the
refugees affected by the fighting in and around the Beirut camps t0 repair thslr
homes before the onset of winter. He hoped that he would receive the additional
resources - 6Ome  five million dollars - which he had requested in the appal that
he had made the preceding February concerning the emergency situation in Lebanon.
That amount would make it  possible to carry out the programme of assistance in
co-ordination with the Lebanese Government.

66. The representative of Lebanon had referred to an Outstanding financial is.euc

relating to the Bayeearieh  project . The Agency’s sole interest in that matter wds
t0 find a way of utilizing  or returning the funds originally made svailablr  for
that  project  so that  UNRWA could carry out i ts responsibilit ies with regard to all
o f  the parties involved in the original arrangement. I t  wae his understanding that



A/SPc; 42/SR.r3
English
Page 16

(Mr. Giacomelli)

the Lebanese  authorit ies concerned were to propoee to the Agency appropriate
ar  rangemente for that  purpore.

67. Lastly, he recalled the important role played by the Agency in maintaining a
degree of stability in the Middle Eart while the eearch  continued for a oettlement
to that difficult  political question. He eleo  thanked those delegations t*Clich  had
c!iven their encouragement and support to the Agency and its etaff.

The meeting rose at 1.15 p.m.


